# COMPARATIVE STUDY OF KANSAS and FHWA GUARDRAIL TRANSITION DESIGNS USING BARRIER VII COMPUTER SIMULATION MODEL

by

Dr. Edward R. Post, P.E. Professor of Civil Engineering

Dr. Christopher Y. Tuan, P.E. Assistant Professor of Civil Engineering

Mr. Syed Ataullah, P.E. Ph.D. Graduate Student in Civil Engineering

submitted to

Mr. James O. Brewer, P.E. State Road Engineer Kansas Dèpartment of Transportation 9th Floor, Docking State Office Building Topeka, Kansas 66612-1568 (913) 296-3901

Transportation Research Report TRP-03-012-88

Civil Engineering Department W350 Nebraska Hall University of Nebraska Lincoln, NE 68588-0531 (402) 472-5017

December 1988

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
LIST OF TABLES
1. INTRODUCTION 1
1.1. Problem Statement
1.2. Objectives of Study 2
2. CALIBRATION OF BARRIER VII MODEL 3
2.1. Vehicle Crushing Stiffness 3
2.2. Soil Stiffness 3
2.3. Vehicle Snagging Potential 4
3. VALIDATION OF BARRIER VII MODEL WITH SWRI CRASH TESTS 6
4. SIMULATION COMPARATIVE STUDIES
4.1. FHWA Guardrail Transition Designs (Base Controls)
4.2. Kansas Guardrail Transition Designs
4.3. Comparison of FHWA and Kansas Transition Designs
5. CONCLUSIONS and RECOMMENDATIONS
5.1 Satisfactory Transition Designs 11
5.2 Promising Transition Design 11
TABLES
FIGURES
APPENDICES 42
A. BARRIER VII Simulation Plans 45
B. BARRIER VII Input/Output: Calibration*
C. BARRIER VII Input/Output: Validation*
D. BARRIER VII Input/Output: FHWA Base Control*
E. BARRIER VII Input/Output: Kansas*
F. Separation Phenomenon of Vehicle when Parallel**

\* Appendices B through F are contained under separate cover

i

# LIST OF TABLES

•

1.	Vehicle Crushing Calibration	13
2.	Soil Stiffness Calibration	14
3.	BARRIER VII Validation: SwRI Crash Test T-5	15
4.	BARRIER VII Validation: SwRI Crash Test T-1	16
5.	BARRIER VII Validation: SwRI Crash Test T-7	17
6.	BARRIER VII Simulations: Base Control Design with Steel Posts	18
7.	BARRIER VII Simulations: Base Control Design with Wood Posts	19
8.	BARRIER VII Simulations: Double Thrie Beam with Steel Posts	20
9.	BARRIER VII Simulations: Double Thrie Beam Wood Posts	21
10.	BARRIER VII Simulations: Single Thrie Beam with Steel Posts and Base Plates	22
11.	BARRIER VII Simulations: Double W-Beam with Steel Posts and Rubrail	23
12.	BARRIER VII Simulations: Combination Double/Single Thrie Beam with Steel Posts as Tapered End Wall	nd 24

# LIST OF FIGURES

	Pa	age
1.	Idealization of Simulation Vehicle	26
2.	Vehicle Spring Load-Deflection Relationship for Contact Point No. 3	27
3.	TTI Dynamic Tests on Posts in Dry Soil	28
4.	Idealized Soil Stiffness for Various Size Posts in Dry Silty Clay Soil	29
5.	Vehicle Snagging Methodology	30
6.	Vehicle Snagging on Nebraska Single Thrie Beam Transition Design	31
7.	Vehicle Snagging Prediction Based on BARRIER VII Simulation	32
8.	FHWA Double W-Beam Transition: Steel Posts and Rubrail (Base Control)	33
9.	FHWA Double W-Beam Transition: Wood Posts and Rubrail (Base Control)	34
10.	Kansas Double Thrie Beam: Steel Posts and Straight End Wall	35
11.	Kansas Double Thrie Beam: Wood Posts and Straight End Wall	36
12.	Kansas Single Thrie Beam: Steel Post with Base Plates and Straight End Wall	37
13.	Kansas Double W-Beam: Steel Posts and Rubrail with Straight End Wall	38
14.	Kansas Double/Single Thrie Beam: Steel Posts and Tapered End Wall	39
15.	Comparison of FHWA and Kansas Transition Deflections	40
16.	Comparison of FHWA and Kansas Vehicle Exit Speeds	41

iii

### 1. INTRODUCTION

### 1.1 Problem Statement

In Technical Advisory T5040.26 dated 28 January 1988, the FHWA (<u>1</u>) has approved five W-Beam guardrail transition designs and two Thrie Beam guardrail transition designs for field installation. The seven transition designs approved were successfully crash tested in accordance with the recommended criteria in NCHRP 230 (<u>2</u>) under the impact conditions of a 4,500 lb. automobile at 60 mph and 25 deg.

Highway and bridge engineers in the Kansas Department of Transportation (KDOT) favor the Thrie Beam type of transition design over the W-Beam type of transition design because it eliminates the need for the use of a W-Beam rubrail which can trap drifting snow. Unfortunately, neither of the two Thrie Beam transition designs approved by the FHWA are acceptable because one of the designs specified the use of three different size posts which creates an inventory problem, and the other design would require costly bridgerail end wall modifications.

Evaluating the safety performance of a guardrail transition design by conducting fullscale vehicle crash tests in accordance with the criteria in NCHRP 230 is very costly. The first of several crash tests on a transition design will cost around \$25,000, whereas, each succeeding test will cost around \$15,000. On the average, three crash tests are required to confirm a guardrail transition design.

It is the opinion of KDOT engineers and research engineers of the University of Nebraska (UNL) that it is possible to evaluate the safety performance of a guardrail transition design using an accurately calibrated BARRIER VII Computer Simulation Model (3), thereby, eliminating the need to conduct costly full-scale vehicle crash tests. This type of evaluation would be based on a "comparative" BARRIER VII simulation study of FHWA approved guardrail transition designs with KDOT guardrail designs.

### 1.2 Objective of Study

The objectives of this study were (1) to accurately calibrate the BARRIER VII Computer Simulation Model with full-scale vehicle crash test data, and (2) to conduct BAR-RIER VII Model simulations to evaluate the safety performance of Kansas guardrail transition designs in "comparison" to selected FHWA approved guardrail transition designs.

#### 2. CALIBRATION OF BARRIER VII MODEL

The BARRIER VII Model  $(\underline{3})$  was calibrated using the data from full-scale vehicle crash tests on roadside traffic barriers. A discussion of the critical factors considered in the calibration process is presented in the work to follow.

2.1 Vehicle Crushing Stiffness

The simulation vehicle selected for this study was a 1977 Plymouth Fury weighing approximately 4,500 lbs. The vehicle was representative of the full-scale crash test vehicles used by Post ( $\underline{4}$ ) of Nebraska and Bronstad ( $\underline{5}$ ) of SwRI in evaluating the safety performance of guardrail-bridgerail transition designs. The dimensions of the vehicle are shown in Figure 1.

The vehicle crushing stiffness was idealized by springs located at 19 contact points around the vehicle. The locations of the springs relative to the vehicle center-of-gravity are shown in Figure 1. For illustration purposes, the force-deflection relationship of Spring No. 3 is shown in Figure 2. The stiffness of the sheet metal before bottoming on a stiff structural member is represented by Line  $(K_1)$ ; the stiffness of the stiff structural member after bottoming is represented by Line  $(K_2)$ ; and the stiffness in unloading is represented by Line  $(K_3)$ . The properties for each spring were estimated from visual observations and measurements of the vehicle structure in the vicinity of the spring.

Fine adjustment of the spring properties were determined from the results of a full-scale vehicle crash test conducted by Buth ( $\underline{6}$ ) of TTI on an instrumented concrete wall. The final calibration results are shown in Table 1. The force-deflection properties of each spring are contained in Appendix B. Although it was determined to be of no major concern, the separation phenomenon of the vehicle from the barrier when parallel is discussed in detail in Appendix F.

#### 2.2 Soil Stiffness

The relationship established by Jeyapalan  $(\underline{7})$  of TTI between laterally applied dynamic loads and the rotational displacements of 6-in. wide guardrail posts in non-frozen dry soil is shown in Figure 3. For all practical purposes, the load-displacement relationship can be idealized as being elastic-plastic with complete failure occurring at a displacement of 20-in.

Assuming a parabolic soil pressure distribution, Ataullah (8) determined that the dynamic load on a post to cause yielding in the soil was proportional to the bearing width of the post against the soil. In the calibration of BARRIER VII with a full-scale vehicle crash test conducted by Post (4) on a single Thrie Beam bridgerail transition design, the proportionality constant was determined to be equal to a value of 1.83 lb/in. in non-frozen dry soil. The final results of the calibration are shown in Table 2. The soil stiffness for various size posts under lateral and longitudinal loads are shown in Figure 4.

#### 2.3 Vehicle Snagging Potential

As illustrated in Figure 5, snagging of the front vehicle wheel hub and rim can occur on the end of concrete bridgerail walls with: (1) W-Beam guardrail transition designs without a rubrail, and (2) Thrie Beam guardrail transition designs.

Bligh  $(\underline{9})$  of TTI determined and verified by conducting full-scale vehicle crash tests that BARRIER VII can be used to predict vehicle snagging for W-Beam transitions without a rubrail by plotting the path of the undeformed wheel hub as shown in Figure 5a. This finding indicates that the wheel hub and rim is able to easily slide under the W-Beam guardrail member.

Insight into vehicle wheel hub and rim snagging on the end of a concrete bridgerail wall with a single Thrie Beam guardrail transition design was provided by Post ( $\underline{4}$ ) in conducting full-scale vehicle crash tests for Nebraska. The severity of snagging shown in Figure 6 was reported by Post as moderate. Snagging occurred as a result of localized plastic deformations of the lower part of the Thrie Beam in the vicinity of the wheel hub and rim, thereby, allowing the deformed section of the Thrie Beam to wrap 3-in. around the end of the tapered bridgerail wall.

A sketch illustrating the concept of vehicle snagging on the end wall of a bridgerail with a Thrie Beam transition is shown in Figure 5b. After local plastic deformations in the Thrie Beam begin, the path of the deformed wheel hub is assumed to remain parallel to the path of undeformed wheel hub due to a constant load on the wheel hub.

The BARRIER VII model simulations of the paths of the undeformed and deformed wheel hub on the Nebraska single Thrie Beam transition design crash tested by Post ( $\underline{4}$ ) is shown in Figure 7. The local plastic deformations in the Thrie Beam began about 8-in. beyond Post No. 2. The predicted 3 1/2-in. of snagging on the tapered end wall compares well with the 3-in. of snagging measured in the crash test.

#### 3. VALIDATION OF BARRIER VII MODEL WITH SWRI CRASH TESTS

The final check on the validation of the BARRIER VII Model calibrated in the previous section of this study was based on the simulation of full-scale vehicle crash tests on guardrail transition designs conducted by Bronstad (5) of the SwRI.

Of the eleven transition designs crash tested by Bronstad, three designs with bridgerail end walls similar to end walls in Kansas were selected for the validation study. The three designs selected were as follows:

- Double W-Beam with wood posts, W-Beam rubrail, and straight concrete bridgerail end wall (Test T-5).
- Single Thrie Beam with wood posts and straight concrete bridgerail end wall (Test T-1).
- Double Thrie Beam with steel posts and straight concrete bridgerail end wall (Test T-7).

The comparison of the results from the SwRI crash tests and the BARRIER VII Model simulations are shown in Tables 3 through 5.

In general, the comparisons were considered to be satisfactory. The vehicle exit angle in the SwRI Test T-1 (Table 4) was lower than predicted by the BARRIER VII Model because of the slight rotations of the damaged end wall.

#### 4. SIMULATION COMPARATIVE STUDIES

### 4.1 FHWA Guardrail Transition Designs (Base Controls)

In Technical Advisory T5040.26 dated 28 January 1988, the FHWA  $(\underline{1})$  has approved five W-Beam guardrail transition designs and two Thrie Beam transition designs for field installation. The seven transition designs approved were successfully crash tested in accordance with the recommended criteria in NCHRP 230 ( $\underline{2}$ ) under the impact conditions of a 4,500 lb. automobile at 60 mph and 25 deg.

Of the seven FHWA approved guardrail transition designs, two designs were selected as base control designs for the "comparative" BARRIER VII Computer Model simulation study. The two designs selected had bridgerail end walls that were most representative of the straight vertical end walls in Kansas. The designs selected were as follows:

- Double W-Beam with rubrail, <u>steel posts</u> and straight concrete bridgerail end wall. Design details shown in Figure 8.
- Double W-Beam with rubrail, <u>wood posts</u> and straight concrete bridgerail end wall. Design details shown in Figure 9.

#### 4.2 Kansas Guardrail Transition Designs

Nine Kansas guardrail transition designs were initially selected by KDOT for the "comparative" BARRIER VII Computer Model simulation study. The nine designs were later revised and reduced to six designs. The two test matrix research plans are contained in Appendix A. Upon beginning the simulation study and analyzing one of the more promising designs, it became readily apparent that several of the designs in test matrix plan were structural inadequate and would result in vehicle wheel snagging on the end wall of the bridgerail. These inadequate designs were either modified or eliminated from the study. The five final Kansas designs on which simulations were conducted were as follows:

- Double Thrie Beam, <u>steel posts</u> and straight concrete bridgerail end wall. Design details shown in Figure 10.
- Double Thrie Beam, wood posts and straight concrete bridgerail end wall. Design details shown in Figure 11.
- Single Thrie Beam, <u>steel posts with base plates</u>, and straight concrete bridgerail end wall. Design details shown in Figure 12.
- Double W-Beam, steel posts, rubrail, and straight concrete bridgerail end wall. Design details shown in Figure 13.
- Combination Double/Single Thrie Beam, <u>steel posts</u>, and <u>tapered</u> concrete bridgerail end wall. Design details shown in Figure 14.
- 4.3 Comparison of FHWA and Kansas Transition Designs

Except for the Double W-Beam (Figure 13), the post spacings in the FHWA and Kansas guardrail transition designs simulated in the comparative study were approximately identical. The first 4 posts from the end of the bridgerail were closely spaced or about 1 ft-6 3/4 in. on centers; the next 4 posts were spaced 3 ft-1 1/2 in. on centers; and the remaining posts were spaced 6 ft-3in. on centers.

The vehicle impact conditions used in the comparative simulation study were in accordance with the criteria in NCHRP 230 ( $\underline{2}$ ). The impact conditions were as follows:

Vehicle Weight	 4,500 lb.
Impact Speed	 60  mph
Impact Angle	 $25  \deg$

The BARRIER VII Computer Model input/output data are contained under separate cover in Appendices B through E.

The results of the comparative BARRIER VII simulation study are summarized in Tables 6 through 12. The three severity levels of vehicle wheel snagging on the end wall of the bridgerail were based on the results from full-scale vehicle crash tests conducted by Post ( $\underline{4}$ ). Out of the four Kansas Thrie Beam transition designs simulated, only the one design with a tapered bridgerail end wall showed promise in which no vehicle wheel snagging occurred.

The comparison of the vehicle point of impact from the bridgerail end wall versus maximum guardrail transition deflection and vehicle exit speed for the FHWA base control designs and the KDOT designs are shown in Figures 15 and 16, respectively.

Referring to Figure 15, the following comparisons were reached in regard to the maximum guardrail transition deflections for vehicle impacts of 4 ft. and beyond the end of the bridgerail wall.

- 1. All five of the Kansas designs were stronger than the FHWA design with steel posts.
- The Kansas Double Thrie Beam design with wood posts and the Kansas Single Thrie Beam design with steel posts and base plates were both stronger than the FHWA design with wood posts.
- 3. The Kansas Double Thrie Beam design with steel posts, the Kansas Double/Single Thrie Beam design with steel posts and tapered end wall, and the FHWA design with wood posts were all equal in strength.
- 4. The Kansas Double W-Beam design with steel posts and rubrail had a strength in between the FHWA designs with steel posts and wood posts.

Referring to Figure 16, the following comparisons were reached in regard to the vehicle exit speed in which no vehicle wheel snagging was predicted to have occurred.

1. The Kansas Double/Single Thrie Beam transition design with steel posts and tapered bridgerail end wall, and the Kansas Double W-Beam transition design with steel posts, rubrail, and straight bridgerail end wall had higher vehicle exit speeds than the FHWA transition designs with steel posts and wood posts.

In Figure 16, the higher the vehicle exit speed the lower the change in vehicle speed, and therefore, the lower the occupant risk injury.

#### 5. CONCLUSIONS and RECOMMENDATIONS

### 5.1 Satisfactory Transition Designs

The comparative BARRIER VII Computer Model simulation study showed that two of the five Kansas guardrail transition designs will provide equal or better performance than the FHWA approved Double W-Beam guardrail transition designs with steel or wood posts, W-Beam rubrail and straight bridgerail end wall. The two Kansas designs were:

- Kansas Double/Single Thrie Beam Design with Steel Posts and Tapered Bridgerail End Wall (Figure 14).
- Kansas Double W-Beam Design with Steel Posts, Tubular Rubrail, and Straight Bridgerail End Wall (Figure 13).

In this study, it was assumed that vehicle wheel snagging will not occur on the FHWA and the Kansas Double W-Beam transition designs with a rubrail. Also, it was shown that vehicle wheel snagging will not occur on the Kansas Double Thrie Beam transition design with a tapered bridgerail end wall. Since vehicle wheel snagging will not occur, it is recommended that the two Kansas transition designs defined above be approved by the FHWA for field installation without conducting full-scale vehicle crash tests.

### 5.2 Promising Transition Design

In this study, it was shown that vehicle wheel snagging will occur on the Kansas Single Thrie Beam transition design with steel posts, 8-in. wide soil bearing plates and straight bridgerail end wall. However, this design has promise of being a satisfactory design if the single Thrie Beam member is replaced by a double Thrie Beam member.

If the Double Thrie Beam member modification is made, it is recommended that BAR-RIER VII Computer Model simulations be conducted to evaluate the potential of vehicle wheel snagging. TABLES

### VEHICLE CRUSHING CALIBRATION

Type Vehicle	:	1975 Plymouth Fury
Vehicle Weight	:	4,740 lb.
Impact Speed	:	59.8 mph
Impact Angle	:	24.0 deg.
Type Barrier	:	Conc. Wall (Instrumented)

ITEM	TTI Crash Test	BARRIER VII Simulation
Vehicle Exit Speed (mph)	42.4	44.6
Vehicle Exit Angle (deg)	14.0	14.6
Vehicle Accelerations 50 ms avg.		
Lateral (g)	15.4	15.6
Longitudinal (g)	9.1	11.7
Vehicle Impact Force 50 ms avg.		
Lateral (kips)	78.3	79.6
Vehicle Time when Parallel		
to Barrier* (ms)	198	200

\*The separation phenomenon of the vehicle from the barrier when parallel was determined to be of no major concern. See Appendix F for a detailed discussion.

# SOIL STIFFNESS CALIBRATION

Type Vehicle	:	1977 Plymouth Fury
Vehicle Weight	:	4,400 lb.
Impact Speed	:	61 mph
Impact Angle	:	25 deg
Type Transition	:	Single Thrie Beam
Impact Point	:	Bet. Post Nos. 2 & 3
Type Soil	:	Dry Silty Clay (CL)

	Nebraska	BARRIER VII	
ITEM	Crash Test	Simulation	
Max. Dynamic Barrier Deflection (in.)	14	12	
Vehicle Exit Speed (mph)	39	36	
Vehicle Exit Angle (deg)	11	10	

BARRIER VII Validation: SwRI Crash Test T-5

Test Vehicle	2	1978 Plymouth
Vehicle Weight	:	4,700 lb.
Impact Point	:	Post No. 5
Impact Speed	:	58.9 mph
Impact Angle	:	25.8 deg.
Transition	:	Double W-Beam with Wood Posts
Soil	:	Dry

ITEM	SwRI Crash Test	BARRIER VII Simulation
Max. Dynamic Guardrail Deflection (in.)	10.9	11.1
Vehicle Exit Speed (mph)	37.7	36.0
Vehicle Exit Angle (deg)	8.0	6.7

BARRIER VII Validation: SwRI Crash Test T-1

Test Vehicle	:	1978 Plymouth Vehicle
Weight	:	4,658 lb.
Impact Point	:	Bet. Post Nos. 4 & 5
Impact Speed	:	61.5 mph
Impact Angle	:	25.2 deg
Transition	:	Single Thrie Beam with Wood Posts
Soil	:	Dry

	SwRI	BARRIER VII	
ITEM	Crash Test	Simulation	
Max. Dynamic Guardrail Deflection (in.)	9.4	9.6	
Vehicle Exit Speed (mph)	36.8	38.1	
Vehicle Exit Angle (deg)	11.2	17.0	

-

i.

# BARRIER VII Validation: SwRI Crash Test T-7

Test Vehicle	:	1978 Dodge
Vehicle Weight	:	4,675 lb.
Impact Point	:	Bet. Post Nos. 8 & 9
Impact Speed	:	58.9
Impact Angle	:	25.1
Transition	:	Double Thrie Beam with Steel Posts
Soil	:	Dry

	SwRI	BARRIER VII
ITEM	Crash Test	Simulation
Max. Dynamic Guardrail Deflection (in.)	13.9	16.9
Vehicle Exit Speed (mph)	42.0	41.1
Vehicle Exit Angle (deg)	5.7	5.0

Table 6	
BARRIER VII SIMULATIONS:	
BASE CONTROL DESIGN WITH STEEL POS	STS

Vehicle Impact Point Railing			ing	Snaggi	ing of Whe	Bridgerail	Vehicle Exit Conditions		
Post Number	Distance From Bridge End (ft-in)	Maximum Deflection @ Height of 21 in. (in)	Distance From Bridge End (ft-in)	None	Minor (0-1 in.)	Moderate (1-3 in.)	Severe (3-6 in.)	Speed (mph)	C.G. Path (deg)
2	2-5 3/4	0.3	0-5 1/2	х				44.2	7.5
3	4-1/2	4.0	1-8 3/8	Х				39.6	15.0
4	5-7 1/4	7.4	2-5 3/4	Х				35.9	22.0
5	8-8 3/4	12.2	4-1/2	Х				36.0	19.0

Table 7
BARRIER VII SIMULATIONS:
BASE CONTROL WITH WOOD POSTS

Vehicle In	npact Point	Rail	Railing		ing of Whe	el on End of	Bridgerail	Vehicle Exit Conditions	
Post Number	Distance From Bridge End (ft-in)	Maximum Deflection @ Height of 21 in. (in)	Distance From Bridge End (ft-in)	None	Minor (0-1 in.)	Moderate (1-3 in.)	Severe (3-6 in.)	Speed (mph)	C.G. Path (deg)
2	2-5 3/4	0.3	0-5 1/2	х	1			44.2	6.5
3	4-1/2	3.5	1-8 3/8	Х				40.0	16.0
4	5-7 1/4	6.0	2-5 3/4	х				38.0	19.0
5	8-8 3/4	10.1	5-1/2	Х				38.6	14.0

Vehicle In	npact Point	Rail	ing	Snaggi	ng of Whee	el on End of	Bridgerail	Vehicle Exit Conditions		
Post Number	Distance From Bridge End (ft-in)	Maximum Deflection @ Height of 21 in. (in)	Distance From Bridge End (ft-in)	None	Minor (0-1 in.)	Moderate (1-3 in.)	Severe (3-6 in.)	Speed (mph)	C.G. Path (deg)	
1	1-10 1/2	0.1	2-7 7/8	x				45.2	6.0	
2	3-5 1/4	2.6	1-10 1/2		-	X		42.5	9.5	
3	5-0	5.6	2-7 7/8			х		39.2	17.0	
4	6-6 3/4	7.8	3-5 1/4	x				37.8	20.0	
5	9-8 1/4	11.0	5-0	х				39.4	12.0	

### Table 8 BARRIER VII SIMULATIONS: DOUBLE THRIE BEAM WITH STEEL POSTS

Notes (1) The vehicle exit speed will be lower than indicated in those cases in which snagging occurred.

Vehicle In	npact Point	Rail	ing	Snaggi	ng of Whe	el on End of	Bridgerail	Vehicle Exit Conditions		
Post Number	Distance From Bridge End (ft-in)	Maximum Deflection @ Height of 21 in. (in)	Distance From Bridge End (ft-in)	None	Minor (0-1 in.)	Moderate (1-3 in.)	Severe (3-6 in.)	Speed (mph)	C.G. Path (deg)	
1	1-10 1/2	0.1	2-7 7/8	Х				45.2	6.0	
2	3-5 1/4	2.1	0-11 1/4		х			43.0	9.0	
3	5-0	4.7	2-7 7/8			х		40.3	10.5	
4	6-6 3/4	6.6	3-5 1/4	х				39.7	14.0	
5	9-8 1/4	9.4	5-9 3/8	Х				41.2	8.0	

### Table 9 BARRIER VII SIMULATIONS: DOUBLE THRIE BEAM WITH WOOD POSTS

Notes (1) Same as Table 8.

### Table 10 BARRIER VII SIMULATIONS: SINGLE THRIE BEAM WITH STEEL POSTS AND BASE PLATES

Vehicle Impact Point Railing				Snagg	ing of Whe	el on End of	Bridgerail	Vehicle Exit Conditions	
Post Number	Distance From Bridge End (ft-in)	Maximum Deflection @ Height of 21 in. (in)	Distance From Bridge End (ft-in)	None	Minor (0-1 in.)	Moderate (1-3 in.)	Severe (3-6 in.)	Speed (mph)	C.G. Path (deg)
2	3-5 1/4	2.8	0-11 1/4			Х		42.5	9.0
3	5-0	4.9	1-10 1/2		Х			40.2	18.0
4	6-6 3/4	6.6	2-7 7/8	Х				39.8	14.0

Notes (1) Same as Table 8.

Vehicle I	Impact Point	Rail	ing	ng Snagging of Wheel on End of Bridgerail				Vehicle	Vehicle Exit Conditions	
Post Number	Distance From Bridge End (ft-in)	Maximum Deflection @ Height of 21 in. (in)	Distance From Bridge End (ft-in)	None	Minor (0-1 in.)	Moderate (1-3 in.)	Severe (3-6 in.)	Speed (mph)	C.G. Path (deg)	
1	0-11 1/4	negligible		х				45.0	4.0	
2	1-10 1/2	0.1	0-11 1/4	х				44.7	7.0	
3	3-5 1/4	1.9	1-4 7/8	x				42.5	10.0	
4	5-0	5.3	1-10 1/2	х				39.3	16.0	
5	6-6 3/4	8.2	2-7 7/8	х				38.7	15.0	

### Table 11 BARRIER VII SIMULATIONS: DOUBLE W-BEAM WITH STEEL POSTS AND RUBRAIL

### Table 12 BARRIER VII SIMULATIONS: COMBINATION DOUBLE/SINGLE THRIE BEAM WITH STEEL POSTS AND TAPERED END WALL

Vehicle Impact Point Railing			ing	Snaggi	ing of Whe	Vehicle Exit Conditions			
Post Number	Distance From Bridge End (ft-in)	Maximum Deflection @ Height of 21 in. (in)	Distance From Bridge End (ft-in)	None	Minor (0-1 in.)	Moderate (1-3 in.)	Severe (3-6 in.)	Speed (mph)	C.G. Path (deg)
2	3-3 3/4	2.6	1-9	x				42.8	9.5
3	4-10 1/2	5.4	2-6 3/8	Х				39.3	17.0
4	6-5 1/4	7.4	3-3 3/4	x				38.2	18.5
5	9-6 3/4	10.7	4-10 1/2	Х				39.6	11.5

Notes (1) Same as Table 8.

### FIGURES

 $\mathbf{k}$ 

 $\mathbf{r}$ 



### AUTOMOBILE 1977 PLYMOUTH FURY

	CONTACT	COORDINATES				
	POINT NO.	г (in.)	s (in.)			
A	1	96.0	13.5			
METAL	2	96.0	25.5			
	3	96.0	37.5			
	4	84.0	37.5			
	5	72.0	37.5			
	6	55.0	37.5			
	7	48.0	37.5			
	8	36.0	37.5			
E.	9	- 55.0	37.5			
HE	10	- 67.0	37.5			
1		- 79.0	37.5			
	12	-91.0	37.5			
	13	-103.0	37.5			
	14	-115.0	37.5			
	15	-115.0	25.5			
	16	-115.0	- 37.5			
¥ .	17	96.0	-37.5			
HEEL HUBS	18	56.0	33.0			
	19	-62.0	33.0			

# FIGURE 1

IDEALIZATION OF SIMULATION VEHICLE

 $(\mathbf{c}, \mathbf{c}, \mathbf{c$ 





### 6 (In.) POSTS WIDTH











FIGURE 5 VEHICLE SNAGGING METHODOLOGY



VEHICLE SNAGGING ON NEBRASKA SINGLE THRIE BEAM TRANSITION DESIGN (TEST NO. 3) 31



VEHICLE SNAGGING PREDICTION BASED ON BARRIER VII SIMULATION



FIGURE 8

FHWA DOUBLE W-BEAM TRANSITION: STEEL POSTS AND RUBRAIL (BASE CONTROL)



FIGURE 9

FHWA DOUBLE W-BEAM TRANSITION : WOOD POSTS AND RUBRAIL (BASE CONTROL)















KANSAS DOUBLE THRIE BEAM WOOD POSTS AND STRAIGHT END WALL



FIGURE 12

KANSAS SINGLE THRIE BEAM : STEEL POSTS WITH BASE PLATES AND STRAIGHT END WALL

DWB + SP + RR





KANSAS DOUBLE W-BEAM: STEEL POSTS AND RUBRAIL WITH STRAIGHT END WALL



140

FIGURE 14

KANSAS DOUBLE/SINGLE THRIE BEAM : STEEL POSTS AND TAPERED END WALL







FIGURE 16 COMPARISON OF FHWA AND KANSAS VEHICLE EXIT SPEEDS

# REFERENCES

- 1. FHWA "Guardrail Transitions," Technical Advisory T 5040.26, January 28, 1988.
  - 2. NCHRP 230 "Recommended Procedures for the Safety Performance Evaluation of Highway Appurtenances," National Cooperative Highway Research Program Report, March, 1981.
  - 3. Powell, G. H. "BARRIER VII: A Computer Program for Evaluation of Automobile Barrier Systems," Report No. FHWA-RD-73-51, Final Report, April, 1973.
  - 4. Post, E. R., "Full-Scale Vehicle Crash Tests on Guardrail- Bridgerail Transition Designs with Special Post Spacing," Transportation Research Report TRP-03-008-87, Civil Engineering Department, University of Nebraska, May, 1987.
  - 5. Bronstad, M.E., Ray, M.H., Mayer, J.B., and McDevitt, C.F., "Guardrail-Bridge Rail Transition Evaluations," TRR 1133, pp. 7-22, 1987.
  - 6. Buth, E., Arnold, A., Campise, W.L., Hirsch, T.J., Ivey, D.L., and Noel, J.S., "Safer Bridge Railings," FHWA/RD-82/072, Volume 1: Summary Report, June, 1984.
  - 7. Jeyapalan, J.K., Dewey, J.F., Hirsch, T.J., Ross, H.E., and Cooner, H., "Soil-Foundation Interaction Behavior of Highway Guardrail Posts," TRR970, pp. 37-47, 1984.
- 8. Ataullah, S., "An Analytical Evaluation of Future Nebraska Bridgerail-Guardrail Transition Designs Using Computer Simulation Model BARRIER VII," M.S. Thesis, Civil Engineering Department, University of Nebraska-Lincoln, August, 1988.
- Bligh, R.P., Sicking, D.L., and Ross, H.E., "Development of a Strong Beam Guardrail/Bridge Rail Transition," Texas A & M University, 67th TRB Annual Meeting, Session 93, January, 1988 (Report in Print).

## APPENDICES

APPENDIX A



Department of Civil Engineering W348 Nebraska Hall Lincoln, NE 68588-0531

April 13, 1988

Mr. James O. Brewer, P.E. State Road Engineer Kansas Dept. of Transportation 9th Floor, Docking State Office Bldg. Topeka, KS 66612-1568

Dear Jim:

This letter is in reference to our telephone conversation on April 11, 1988.

The proposed BARRIER VII Computer model simulation runs on guardrail-bridgerail transition designs are enclosed for your consideration. As we discussed, computer modeling is a rapid and inexpensive method to select the best design alternative before conducting expensive full-scale vehicle crash tests. The proposed design alternatives were made after consultation with Mr. Charles McDivett of the FHWA Safety Research and Development Office in McLean, Virginia.

The "effectiveness" of a transition design alternative will be determined by comparing the performance characteristics of the design alternative with that of a similar approved FHWA design, "Vertical Concrete Bridge Rail End: W-Beam with Rubrail and Steel Posts" (Figure 1B, Technical Advisory T504.26 Jan. 28, 1988). The performance characteristics will include dynamic deflections, occupant relative impact velocity, change in vehicle speed and vehicle exit angle.

In the event that the performance of one of the proposed transition design alternatives is uncertain or unsatisfactory, then a stronger design with wood posts or a stronger design with soil bearing plates on steel posts would be worthly of ocnsideration.

The cost to make one computer simulation run (includes report) will be \$500. I estimate that computer simulation will reduce crash testing costs by at least 50%.

I am looking forward to the opportunity of working with you and other engineers from KDOT and FHWA on this project.

Respectfully, Edward & Fost

Dr. Edward R. Post, P.E. Professor

enclosures (2) cc: Dr. W. E. Kelly, P.E. CE Chairman

University of Nebraska-Lincoln

University of Nebraska at Omaha

KDOT TRANSIT (Proposed)	10N	5					(_1/2	
TRANSITION		Impact Post 40 BARRIER YI			cother Number		A Number s.	
	1	2	3	4	5	Simulations	JOSH 1851	
A. BASE CONTROL DESIGN (FHWA Figure 13) Vertical Concrete Bridgerail End; W-Beam with Rubrail; Steel Pasts (Technicol Advisory Jan 28,19	<del>9</del> 9)	×	×	×	×	4		
B. RETROFIT EXISTING DESIGN								
- Existing Design		×	×			3		
b. Add Rubrall	$\times$	×	$\times$			3	21	
C. Add Rubrall & 2. Steel Pasts		×		×	×	3		
C. NEW DESIGNS 1. Barrier Curb : Single Three Beam w/ Steel Pasts Add Ruhrall	×	×	×			3	2.1	
b. Add Rubrall & 1 Steel Post		×	×	×		3	5-	
2. Barrier Curb : Double Thrie Beam w/ Steel Posts						7		
a. Add Rubrall (2)		X	×	X		2 3	f 1	
b. Mag Nuorail & 1 Orean Just							-	
3. Barrier Curb: Double W-Beam w/ Steel Tost		×	~	×	×	A	2.	
b. Rubrail + 1 Additional Steel Past		×	×	×	×	4	1	
Notes (1) Rubrall Length = 12'-6"					<b>.</b>	33	4	
(2) Rubral Length = 6'-3'2" (3) Impact Conditions: 4,500 16. auto @ 60 mph/	125 deg							
	/							

11 Apr 88 Dr. E.R. Past. P.E. (2/2) . . KODT TRANSITIONS 1. BARRIER III Simulation Costs 33 runs @ \$500/run ..... \$16,500 2. FULL-SCALE CRASH TEST Costs a) Construction ---- \$ 10,000 ---- \$,000 The DataCom/ Made In U.B.A. Bridgerail Guardrail b) Tests & Analyses 4 tests @ \$17,600/test ..... \$ 70,400 Total - + 85,400 48

ERE	n. Est	Datal	.om/	Made	n U.S.A.			16 Ant
(UNL)	Table 1 BARRIER VIL COMPL ON KOOT GUARDRAIL-BA	TE,	R : GEI	EIM ENI	1)L) L T)	AT 12 RAI	) NS VS / ;	(b) TIONS
Item No.	TRANSITION DESIGN	Post Impact Location 1 2 3 4 5 4				(a)	Number of Simulations	
A.	BASE CONTROL DESIGN FHWA Tech. Advisory Jan 28, 1988 Vert. Conc. Bridgeral with Steel Posts and Rub Roll (Figure 1B)		×	×	×	×		4
B. B.1. B.1.4.	RETROFIT' EXISTING DESIGN Steel Plate Guide Fence W/ Steel Posts (608.6A) Add Rub Rail (TS 6x2x.1875) and Add 2 Steel Posts	Ø	×	$\otimes$	×	×		5
С. С.1. С.1.а. С.1.Ь.	KANSAS RAIL DESIGNS (NEW) <u>Double Thrie</u> Beams wf Steel Posts Add I Steel Post Add 2 Steel Posts	®®	×	×⊗	×	×		4 3
C.2. C. 2.4.	Single Thrie Beam w/ Steel Pasts Add 2 Steel Pasts	$\otimes$		$\otimes$		×		3
С.З. С.З.Л. С.З.Ь.	Double W-Beam w/ Steel Posts Rub Rail (TS 6×2×.1875) Rub Rail and Add 1 Steel Post	×	×	××		×		3 3
Nates	(a) & denotes added most	L		L	2	702	12	25

(b) Impact Londitions: 4,500 lb. auto @ 60 mph/25 deg.



- 24



105.11. 13 1/1 Dace

which approved a new file of the serve as wells and by Sopora as the server. The server server that is the server that are as the server of t an Die Arit .

and for all and



1

I have the general a second or appear to be to be a second or the

Phy' # 1 1/4" Stated holes - Ground line

ARRANGEMENT AT POSTS

加高加西

14

ELEVATION

(Steel Post)

雨き 雨季

Note All Dores 13%

HOLF PLINCHING DETAILS

Other typical dimension from the f of web to f of "The torns in 1 "A"









